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	Q.1
	Can institutions/organizations from other states apply to this grant? 

	A.1
	Yes, institutions from other states may apply to this grant solicitation. However, per Section II.A.3 of the application manual, applicants must be registered with the California Secretary of State and be in good standing in order to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission. If not currently registered with the California Secretary of State, applicants should contact the Secretary of State’s Office as soon as possible. For more information, visit the Secretary of State’s website at: www.sos.ca.gov. 
Furthermore, in order to receive points under scoring criteria 6, more than 60 percent of the EPIC funds must be spent in California using the definition in this criterion.
Also keep in mind that all pilot demonstration sites must be located in California IOU service territory or located in a facility that sells electricity to the IOU as documented by a PPA. All projects must benefit California IOU ratepayers.

	Q.2
	Is it possible to have technical collaboration with institutes outside of California or USA?

	A.2
	Yes. See also response A.1 to question Q.1.

	Q.3
	Can my company work as a platform for a European company and use the European company's patent and add this company as a collaborator?

	A.3
	Yes. See also response A.1 to question Q.1. See also Terms & Conditions, especially those pertaining to Pre-Existing and Independently Funded Intellectual Property, and Intellectual Property; and Attachment C-1. 

	Q.4
	Can we conduct the project in another state, while collaborating with a Californian utility?

	A.4
	Projects conducting applied research and development that do not involve pilot demonstration activities have no location restrictions but must demonstrate California IOU ratepayer benefits and meet the requirements of the project group of your application. See also response A.1 to question Q.1. As a practical matter, demonstration of benefits to IOU ratepayers may be difficult if the project is not in California. Also, Scoring Criterion 6 awards points for funds spent in California. 

	Q.5
	As an individual Applicant, who is a registered California Civil Engineer, do I also need any authorization by the California Secretary of State in order for my Application to be accepted?

	A.5
	Section II.A.3 partly states that sole proprietors using a fictitious business name must be registered with the appropriate county and provide evidence of registration to the Energy Commission prior to their project being recommended for approval at an Energy Commission Business Meeting.
For more information go to http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-programs/business-entities/starting-business/types/ 
If you do not have a fictitious business name and are operating as an individual rather than as a proprietor of a business entity, you may not be required to register with the Secretary of State but you should still ensure that you are registered as applicable with all applicable local jurisdictions, such as counties, to do business. 

	Q.6
	Do all subcontractors need to have a California corporation at the time of contract?

	A.6
	No. All prime recipients  and subcontractors that conduct intrastate business in California and that are corporations, LLCs, LPs, and LLPs are required to be registered and in good standing with the California Secretary of State. Keep in mind that an entity’s jurisdiction may be separate from where it is registered to do business. Consult your own counsel to ensure that you comply with the Secretary of State registration requirements. 

	Q.7
	Our lead scientist lives in Colorado. Can he pay CA income taxes to meet that requirement? How should we assure the CEC that he will pay CA taxes on the income he earns and therefore qualify to participate in the grant?

	A.7
	If you are referring to scoring criterion 6, points can be earned for funds spent in California, but this is not a requirement for eligibility.  One way to spend funds in California is to spend Funds under the “Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor (Prime and Subcontractor Labor Rates) to individuals who pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement. Funds paid to out of state personnel are not eligible under criterion EPIC Funds Spent in California. If your proposal is approved to be funded by this EPIC solicitation, you will be asked to submit a form that confirms the actual EPIC funds spent in California when you submit each invoice to the Commission. 

	Q.8
	Is it allowed to submit more than one proposal within one of the topical groups?

	A.8
	Per Section I.A, “Applicants may submit multiple applications, though each application may address only one of the project groups identified above. If an applicant submits multiple applications that address the same project group, each application must be for a distinct project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 6).” 
If an applicant submits multiple applications and they are for the same project (e.g., tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 6 are similar), then only the first application screened by the Energy Commission will be eligible for funding. 
Refer to Section IV.E. Screening Criterion 3.

	Q.9
	Is one company allowed to submit applications for more than one project if they address two separate and different areas of scope/target within the GFO solicitation? What are the restrictions/requirements around this?

	A.9
	See response A.8 to question Q.8.

	Q.10
	Can there be two applicants (entities) on the application form or only one?

	A.10
	The application form required for each proposal must identify one applicant. The application form must be completed by and signed by an authorized representative of the applicant. Other entities may participate as, e.g., a project partner or subcontractor. 

	Q.11
	I noticed that the period of performance is nominally 3 years. Is it always 3 years? Could it be two years? Could it be shorter than three years?

	A.11
	Yes, the project can be shorter than three years.

	Q.12
	In terms of putting together a team is there any benefit in terms of scoring by having people in geographically distinct parts of the state?

	A.12
	No, there is no benefit in term of scoring by having people in geographically distinct parts of the state. However, there is benefit to having people in California in general in terms of spending EPIC funds in California and additional points to applications with passing scores if test or demonstration sites are located in disadvantaged communities.

	Q.13
	The CEQA documentation, and I know you guys prefer an exemption, what evidence do they need to show that they've started that process or just citing an appropriate exemption that has been used in the past, would that be evidence enough? Do you need to show proof that you have started that exemption process at this point?

	A.13
	All applications must include a completed California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance Form (Attachment 8) regardless of whether the proposed activities are considered a “project” under CEQA. 
If the proposed activities are considered a “project” under CEQA, the Project Narrative must provide information documenting progress towards achieving compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) by addressing the areas Section III.D.4.b, and Section III.D.8. If applicant does not consider the proposed activities to be a “project” under CEQA, the Project Narrative may make reference to the completed CEQA Compliance form (Attachment 8) and explain why the applicant believes that the activities proposed do not constitute a project pursuant Cal. Code of Regulations, title 14, section 15378.
The Energy Commission will do its own, independent CEQA analysis and will make its own CEQA findings. It would be ideal and help to expedite the Energy Commission’s consideration if a local lead agency had already considered the proposed project and found it to be categorically exempt. 

	Q.14
	[bookmark: _GoBack]I need an explanation on what this means: 
In the EPIC_Standard_Grant_Terms_and_Conditions.pdf, I see section 22 Royalty Payments to the Commission. Does this mean the energy department feels it is OK to get paid money for someone's idea just because it funded all or a portion of it?

	A.14
	The Terms & Conditions that will be part of a resultant standard grant agreement provide, in Section 22, various requirements and rules for royalty payments. As the GFO indicates, failure to agree to the terms and conditions by taking actions such as failing to sign the Application Form or indicating that acceptance is based on modification of the terms will result in rejection of the application. 
Please also note Sections 20 and 21, and Attachment C-1, pertaining variously to Pre-Existing and Independently Funded Intellectual Property and Intellectual Property.
Please make sure that you are viewing the Terms & Conditions that are appropriate for your entity (i.e., Standard T&C, University of California T&C, or Department of Energy T&C).

	Q.15
	If somebody has an idea for a tool that would allow geothermal power stations to become cheap enough to drill for, who ends up owning all the rights and privileges of a project if funding from the California energy department is decided to be used including but not limiting - Copyrights, patents, trademarks, intellectual property and use rights?

	A.15
	Assuming that this question refers to funding from the California Energy Commission, please refer to the Terms & Conditions posted with the solicitation and available at http://www.energy.ca.gov/research/contractors.html, and select the Terms & Conditions appropriate for your entity’s form (i.e., Standard T&C, University of California T&C, or Department of Energy T&C). Note especially the provisions and attachment relating to pre-existing intellectual property and patents. 

	Q.16
	It is customary in grant programs to allow the candidate to incur costs at their own risk after application submittal.  Is it your understanding that it would be okay for us to incur costs after we've applied for this grant (either as a lead or as a team-member of a larger group) with the understanding that we would only expect any sort of support if we were awarded the grant in the spring of 2017?

	A.16
	No. The Energy Commission will only reimburse actual costs that are incurred during the agreement term (i.e., after agreement execution) and which are properly documented. See Section IV.B.2 of the application manual. Note, however, that match funds may be expended at the Recipient’s own risk.

	Q.17
	Please confirm that multiple subcontractors are allowed for this solicitation, one or more of which may be major (i.e., may be given 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds requested).

	A.17
	Yes, multiple minor and major subcontractors are allowed for this solicitation. Only the prime contractor will complete the Application Form (Attachment 1). 
For budget worksheet (attachment 7): A separate set of complete budget forms, including the full set of worksheets, is required for the Contractor/Recipient and for each subcontract containing: 1) $100,000 or more of Energy Commission funds; or 2) 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds requested.

	Q.18
	Please confirm that the recipient does not have to be awarded the majority of the requested funds and the total requested funds for subcontractors (or for a single subcontractor) can be more than for the Recipient.

	A.18
	Yes, the recipient does not have to be awarded the majority of the requested funds and the total requested funds for (a) subcontractor(s) can be greater than the funding for the Recipient.

	Q.19
	Please confirm whether two entities can submit a joint proposal or that is not allowed (i.e., only one entity can be an applicant and a potential Recipient).

	A.19
	See response A.10 to question Q.10.

	Q.20
	In the Project Narrative template questions 1h and 2f are the same. Please confirm that this is intentional-one is for discussing technical merit and need and one is seeking information on approach.

	A.20
	Please see Application Manual section IV.F. Scoring criteria and Addendum 1 cover letter at  http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-16-301/     

	Q.21
	If including figures in the proposal, do the figure labels need to comply with the 11-point, Arial font requirement?

	A.21
	11-point, Arial may be used in the proposal’s document, excluding Excel spreadsheets, original template headers and footers, and commitment or support letters. 
Please follow the instruction given in the Application Manual section III.A., “Application Format, Page Limits, and Number of Copies.” 

	Q.22
	How does a public agency input subcontractor information for a project when they are subject to subsequent public, competitive bidding requirements per state law?

	A.22
	The Energy Commission requires certain information for evaluating proposals, including but not limited to team qualifications, capabilities, and resources; budget; and EPIC funds spent in California. Please specify the relevant information and hold any subcontractor you later select to what you promise in your application. You may list a “To Be Determined” (TBD) subcontractor, when its identification is still subject to a bidding process in your public agency.  

	Q.23
	If a public agency is the applicant, do they need to submit references if the prime subcontractor provides references?

	A.23
	Yes, according to the Reference and Work Product Form (Attachment 9), applicants must include three references for the recipient and two for each subcontractor. 

	Q.24
	The instructions say proprietary/confidential data are not allowed to be used in a proposal, but what is CEC's position on the use of an industry partner's proprietary data in the research and subsequent publications?

	A.24
	Applications submitted under this solicitation must not contain proprietary/confidential data. All submitted documents will become public records after the Energy Commission posts the NOPA or the solicitation is cancelled. The Energy Commission will not accept or retain applications that identify any portion as confidential.  No confidential information should be submitted in bids because, generally speaking, as a state-government agency, the Energy Commission is required to share data with the public. 
As to deliverables in any agreement that may result from this solicitation, a bidder may request that data that is part of a product or deliverable in a proposed resultant agreement be kept confidential in Attachment C-1 of the proposed agreement. The burden is on the applicant to prove to the Energy Commission that a statutory exemption to the Public Records Act is applicable, and the Energy Commission’s legal office will make a determination as to whether or not the proposed data will be kept confidential. 

	Q.25
	Who will review and grade the proposals?

	A.25
	Selected staff from the Energy Commission will be part of the evaluation team of this solicitation. Experts outside of the Energy Commission, who not applicants or subcontractors to any proposals, may be invited to provide technical advice to the Energy Commission team.

	Q.26
	With the Measurement & Verification plan, I know that you have attachment 12 which gives guidance on the greenhouse gas calculations and I don't see much other guidance within the RFP as far as what else, I mean there's some stuff in there but it’s pretty scant. So is the Measurement & Verification plan part of the narrative numbering as far as the limitation, does that fall within that limitation or is it a separate attachment as attachment 12 or separate from that? How expansive do you want that measurement and verification plan? There's not a lot of information on it.

	A.26
	The Measurement and Verification Plan for all groups must be included in the Project Narrative (Attachment 4, item 3: Impacts and Benefits to California Ratepayers) and describe how actual project benefits will be measured and quantified. According to Section III.A, the page limit of the Project Narrative is 20 pages. 
The Attachment 12 provides guidelines for calculating costs and benefits under scoring criterion 3 (Impacts and Benefits for California IOU Ratepayers). While the guidelines are not mandatory, applicants should review them to understand expectations for the type of information to be provided regarding the costs and benefits of their proposed projects. Applicants must document all input assumptions and calculations in their proposals.
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	Q.27
	Please confirm that the applicants who submit the proposal through the Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System do not need to submit any hard copies.

	A.27
	As mentioned in Section III.C, please do not submit a hard copy of an application that is submitted through the Grant Solicitation System.

	Q.28
	Please confirm that the electronic files submitted via Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System can be in docx format (Microsoft Office 2007 or later versions).

	A.28
	As mentioned in Section III.B, Electronic files must be in Microsoft Word XP (.doc format) and Excel Office Suite formats unless originally provided in the solicitation in another format.  Attachments requiring signatures may be scanned and submitted in PDF format.
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	Q.29
	Could the project be physically situated on a hydro drop that happens to sit within a publicly owned utility and irrigation district, BUT connect directly to an IOU power line?

	A.29
	Pilot-scale demonstration projects outside of IOU territory may be eligible if the electricity generated is sold directly to an IOU and the project can demonstrate IOU ratepayer benefits. In accordance with CPUC Decision 12-05-037, funds administered by the Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with publicly-owned utility activities. 
EPIC objectives are to provide more reliable, lower-cost, safer electricity to IOU ratepayers. Thus, the impacts and benefits for California IOU ratepayers must be explained, justified and estimated in your application. 

	Q.30
	Why are small hydro projects restricted to “in-conduit” applications?

	A.30
	In-conduit hydro projects, which are able to avoid many of the environmental concerns related to run-of-river or impoundment-based hydropower systems, use existing water allotments, and in many instances may exploit existing infrastructure to help reduce capital expenditures. 
Despite these advantages, development of in-conduit hydropower has been exceedingly slow due to technological and regulatory barriers, hence the need for research to overcome these barriers. Another reason for targeting in-conduit small hydropower is to take advantage of new FERC guidelines for exempting non-controversial hydro projects on existing conduits of less than a certain size. 

	Q.31
	What is the working definition of “in-conduit” for the purpose of this solicitation

	A.31
	For the purposes of this solicitation, in-conduit hydro refers to a hydroelectric facility that uses the hydraulic energy potential of an existing pipe, ditch, flume, siphon, canal, channel or any other man-made conduit that is operated to distribute water for beneficial use. Natural rivers, streams, estuaries, or any other biologically or environmentally significant waterways are not included in this definition. This definition does not allow for the construction of dams, impoundments, and reservoirs or other water storage, diversion or transport infrastructure. All projects that are to be deployed in the field must be “permittable” in the timeframe of the project. Projects that would qualify for the New Conduit Hydro Exemption authorized in HR 267, Federal Hydropower Regulatory Efficiency Act of 2013, or can otherwise demonstrate that the project will not trigger a multi-year permitting process, are preferable.
Significant hydrokinetic generation potential exists at existing canal drops and pipeline pressure relief valves within the state.  Projects demonstrated in the field should be placed in existing water conveyance structures and not require any new water allotments, nor should they significantly change water delivery schedules.
See also A.38. 

	Q.32
	Why the distinction of hydrokinetic vs hydrostatic?

	A.32
	Hydrokinetic refers to hydraulic energy in the form of moving water. Hydrostatic refers to hydraulic energy stored in the form of elevation or pressure change. Turbine designs exist for converting each to electricity. Whether a resource is primarily hydrostatic or hydrokinetic is mostly a function of the nature of the resource being exploited. For example, an open axial flow rotor operating in a free flowing canal would be classified as hydrokinetic since it would be extracting energy by altering the velocity field. On the other hand, a bulb turbine operating as a pressure reducing device would be exploiting a hydrostatic resource. 
Projects that target hydrokinetic, hydrostatic or any mix thereof are acceptable as long as they satisfy the in-conduit requirements for Group 1.

	Q.33
	Explain language related to “pilot-scale demonstration of prototype turbines or field demonstration of existing turbine technology reconfigured for in-conduit service.”

	A.33
	Pilot-scale demonstration of a prototype generally refers to the deployment of a less than full-scale, pre-commercial turbine under field conditions for a limited amount of time in order to make observations and collect data that will aid in the future development of a commercially viable product. Field demonstration of existing technology reconfigured for in-conduit service refers to demonstrating existing, commercially-available equipment not specifically designed for in-conduit electricity production in in-conduit applications; it may require modifications to adapt the turbine to in-conduit use. An example would be modifying an off-the-shelf centrifugal pump for use as a turbine in a pressure reducing application.

	Q.34
	Under the in-conduit hydro group of funding, does refurbishment of an existing traditional hydropower unit qualify if equipment efficiency is increased?

	A.34
	It would depend on the project specifics.  Group 1 projects must fall under the Applied Research and Development Program Area and satisfy the in-conduit hydropower requirements. For instance, a refurbishment project might be eligible if it includes a significant research component for developing new technologies, methods or approaches that will help reduce barriers to deploying in-conduit hydropower for meeting California’s renewable energy goals.

	Q.35
	The site that I am proposing to use is located at the discharge spillway from the Thermalito Afterbay into the Feather River. This location is at the end of a canal from the Afterbay, with discharge regulated by gates. There will be no change in the rate of discharge or difference in water levels due to the installation of the Broome Turbines. Does this type of installation satisfy the definition of an "In-conduit" type of Hydroelectric Power Generator?

	A.35
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. As to “in-conduit” generally, please see response A.31 to question Q.31.

	Q.36
	The GFO scope includes projects ranging from “pilot-scale demonstration” of new hydropower turbines, to “field demonstration of existing turbine technology.” Can we receive clarification on what constitutes new, pilot-scale hydropower turbines vs. existing turbine technology for commercial demonstration? What are the restrictions/requirements around this?

	A.36
	Please see A.33 in response to question Q.33.

	Q.37
	If an applicant or awardee maintains the same or equitable objectives, work plan, and budget, are they able to change the specific pilot or demonstration site, such as the specific canal drop or irrigation district, after their application has been submitted? Given the needed due diligence and approval, what are the restrictions/requirements around this?

	A.37
	A site changes constitutes an amendment to an agreement and is subject to Energy Commission approval. Changing sites may require a new CEQA analysis. Also consider that projects involving pilot demonstration activities must include a letter signed by an authorized representative of the proposed test/ demonstration/ deployment site that commits to providing the site for the proposed activities. See Section III.D.11 and Attachment 11 for more detailed information on commitment letters. 

	Q.38
	Group 1: Expanding California use of in-conduit hydrokinetic power. Do the words “in-conduit” include all of the following: (a) water at point of release on the downstream side of the dam. (b) water gravitationally flowing in a stream bed (c) water gravitationally flowing in a canal (d) water flowing over a spill way (e) water flowing over a falls. Our patented concept/design can be installed using any of the above water flow systems that move at the rate of 250 cubic feet per second.

	A.38
	It all depends on the nature of the specific project. See response A.31to question Q.31. 

	Q.39
	Referencing the available funds section, 3.5 million dollars is the set aside amount from the total budget of 8.5 million available for the category of expanding California’s use in-conduit Hydro Kinetic Power. We believe our project proposal fits this category perfectly. Our rough budget categories include material and manufactured components; further engineering work for higher performance design from analysis of our Alpha Prototype; construction of our Beta Prototype; installation of the Beta Prototype as a scaled working model; Architectural plans for customers desiring to buy for installation, the Hydro Pneumatic Buoyancy Engine; Four in-house staff members’ salaries for the duration of the project; CPA accounting cost to administrate the budget: Total project cost is estimated roughly to be 2.5 million dollars. Can this amount if justified, be granted for our project; If the benefits to our citizens are shown to be of a much greater value on a sustained basis of clean, economically produced, renewable energy.

	A.39
	The available funding for group 1 is $3,500,000; however, the maximum award amount per project for group 1 is $2,000,000. Part of the total project cost can be covered by match funding. Please see Section I.E for more information about available funding, maximum and minimum award amounts, and match funds.  

	Q.40
	For Group 1: Our packaged system contains an energy storage component which aims to stabilize the intermittent power generated from small hydro-power. Rather than focusing on improving the turbine performance, the project aims to improve the overall hydro-power performance by delivering reliable hydroelectricity. Does this project qualify for this proposal call?

	A.40
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, projects that contribute to the integration of in-conduit small hydropower into the energy mix and which are otherwise eligible under this solicitation are sought. Projects are not restricted to turbine development. Eligible projects are those that develop and validate technologies and tools that expand the use of in-conduit hydropower in California and leading to increased installed capacity and improved understanding of its benefits to the grid. See Section II.B.2.a for the purpose and requirements of group 1.  
An energy storage component may not be the primary product of agreements funded under this solicitation, but technical tasks involving an energy storage system can be funded with match funds.  

	Q.41
	The project aims to develop a power generation system which takes in low power input that is intermittent and fluctuating, and dispatches high power output with signal conditioning that is stable and more reliable. This power generation system would be integrated with conduit hydro-power extraction systems. Is this project eligible for the call?

	A.41
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, projects that contribute to the integration of in-conduit small hydropower into the energy mix and which are otherwise eligible are sought. See also answer A.40 to question Q.40.

	Q.42
	Can the Energy Commission please define both Hydrokinetic and Hydropower for purposes of this solicitation?

	A.42
	See response A.31 to question Q.31. 

	Q.43
	Do existing hydroelectric projects qualify that are retrofitted or rehabilitated and show technological innovation per the grant requirements?

	A.43
	Projects that retrofit existing in-conduit hydroelectric projects must exhibit technological innovation such that they contribute to the integration of in-conduit small hydropower into the energy mix. Projects must also meet all other requirements specified in the solicitation to be eligible. This solicitation does not support projects that merely intended to upgrade aging equipment for specific sites; innovations should be transferrable to other, similar in-conduit applications.

	Q.44
	If a project has an existing conduit (penstock) that emanates from an existing dam, but is not part of the dam structure, does the project qualify for this grant?


	A.44
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. 
Please see response A.31 to question Q.31.

	Q.45
	How should applicants handle information defined as FERC Critical Energy Infrastructure Information (CEII)? (FERC regulates CEII data for small, in-conduit hydroelectric sites)

	A.45
	Applicants must not send confidential information with their proposals. Sensitive CEII that can have adverse impacts if released publically should not be sent with proposals.
As to deliverables in any agreement that may result from this solicitation, a bidder may request that data that is part of a product or deliverable in a proposed resultant agreement be kept confidential in Attachment C-1 of the proposed agreement. The burden is on the applicant to prove to the Energy Commission that a statutory exemption to the Public Records Act is applicable, and the Energy Commission’s legal office will make a determination as to whether or not the proposed data will be kept confidential.



	[bookmark: _Toc456967338]Group 2: Geothermal Energy

	Q.46
	The purpose of the solicitation with respect to Group 2 (geothermal) is stated to be "improving the cost-effectiveness and operational flexibility of geothermal energy production" and in particular to "Develop new and advanced technologies, strategies and tools."  Is there a limitation on how "advanced" the technology can be within Group 2?

	A.46
	Projects must fall within the “applied research and development” stage, which includes activities that support pre-commercial technologies and approaches that are designed to solve specific problems in the electricity sector. Applied research and development activities also include early, pilot-scale testing activities that are necessary to demonstrate the feasibility of pre-commercial technologies.

	Q.47
	The required efficiency increase is stated as 20% increase for geothermal. Does that 20% have to take place in one specific category, like plant efficiency or reduced maintenance cost, or can multiple categories be improved to total 20% increase?

	A.47
	Research activities focused on geothermal resource development must demonstrate potential to improve development activities by at least 20%. Improvement may include but is not limited to: reduction in costs or technical risks, or an increase in accuracy or efficiency.  This 20% improvement could be spread out over several categories.  For example, a project may involve a technology used to characterize a geothermal reservoir that is estimated to be more accurate and cost less. If it is estimated to improve the accuracy by 10% and reduce the cost by another 10%, that would fulfill the requirement of 20% improvement.

	Q.48
	Due to the word, “all” on page 14 of the Application Manual does a project proposed under Group 2 have to include research activities in both areas, i.e., research activities in existing geothermal facilities and activities in geothermal resources?

	A.48
	No, projects under Group 2 do not have to include research activities in both existing facilities and resource development. If research activities are focused on existing geothermal facilities, then they must demonstrate potential for a payback period of less than 5 years. If research activities are focused on geothermal resource development, then they must demonstrate potential to improve development activities by at least 20%.

	Q.49
	Do geothermal facilities mean geothermal power plants converting heat to electricity?

	A.49
	Yes, in this solicitation, “geothermal facilities” refers to geothermal power plants that convert geothermal resources such as steam or hot fluid to generate electricity.

	Q.50
	Do existing geothermal facilities mean physically existing (already built) geothermal power plants?

	A.50
	In this solicitation, existing geothermal facilities refers to geothermal power plants or supporting infrastructure that is already physically built or is in the process of being physically built.

	Q.51
	Does geothermal resource mean geothermal well providing the heat source?

	A.51
	The geothermal resource is the geothermal reservoir containing the heat. The wells are the means to access the reservoir and are part of the resource development process.

	Q.52
	What kind of justification is required to show a potential for payback period of 5 years and improvement of 20% stated above?

	A.52
	This should be shown with a calculation using known information along with reasonable assumptions. The specific method of calculation is project-dependent and up to the applicant.

	Q.53
	What is included in the "potential for a payback period of less than 5 years?" We assume “the potential for payback” is related to a theoretical commercial deployment. Please detail what costs should be included in the 5 year payback. Is there a particular power plant scale (MWe) in mind to be used to calculate payback?

	A.53
	The potential payback period calculation should use a theoretical commercial deployment scenario and should be based on the difference made by the focus of the project. It should not be the simple payback period for an entire power plant. For example: A project involves an improved power plant component that is projected to cost $100,000 to deploy. It is calculated to increase the revenue of a standard 50 MW plant by $25,000 annually through efficiency improvements and decreased maintenance costs. To calculate the payback period, you would divide 100,000 by 25,000 to get a simple payback period of 4 years. 50 MW is a typical power plant scale but if there are reasons to use a different size plant in the calculation, you are not prohibited from doing so.

	Q.54
	Does the product have to specifically target geothermal plants in IOU territories? Is there a scoring benefit to have a technology that can be applied to geothermal sites outside of an IOU’s territory?

	A.54
	If the project involves a pilot site, the site needs to have a power purchase agreement with an IOU. It is favorable if the technology can also be applied to sites outside IOU territories, but benefits specifically to IOU ratepayers must be clearly established in the application.

	Q.55
	Will a proposal for a process that combines power generation while simultaneously sequestering CO2 in the geothermal well have any merit or will it be disqualified?

	A.55
	All projects that allow geothermal facilities to operate in flexible mode, help existing geothermal power plants to improve capacity and productivity, and boost system cost efficiency are welcome to participate in this grant funding opportunity. Sequestration of CO2 would not earn additional points but it would not be grounds for disqualification.

	Q.56
	One of the listed topics for the geothermal component of the solicitation is: "Conducting a study to further identify lower temperature resources in California". It is not clear how a study on this topic would satisfy the required elements for the Group 2 projects, given that lower temperature resources are not likely suitable for electric power generation. How would a project associated with this topic be evaluated as responding to the required elements of the solicitation? Does such a project need to demonstrate potential direct use applications for lower temperature resources that could offset electric power generation requirements?

	A.56
	Low temperature geothermal resources are those resources less than 300° F. There are technologies that can produce electric power from resources in this range. Binary (organic Rankine cycle) technologies are capable of producing electricity from sources as low as 165° F. When evaluating the benefits of a project such as this, the main criteria would be the potential for electricity generation, but direct use potential could also be included as a secondary benefit.

	Q.57
	What percentage of full scale is a pilot scale? How is full scale identified, when geothermal plants have a wide range of electric output? If designing a component for a 50MWe plant what size would be considered pilot?

	A.57
	Since the focus of the project will be on just a small piece of the power plant and not the power plant as a whole, there is not necessarily a need to scale according to the size of the plant. If the project focuses on an improved component for a 50 MW geothermal plant, the pilot could consist of deploying that component to a single 50 MW plant. The goal would be to demonstrate the potential for deployment of the technology to many plants by deploying to a single pilot site. Keep in mind that the maximum award amount for a Group 2 project is $2,000,000.
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	Q.58
	Do group 3 projects have to include an actual wind turbine?

	A.58
	Projects may or may not include an actual wind turbine depending on the objectives as long as the project meets the Group 3 requirements. For instance, projects that are focused on the effective use of wind resources such as those at higher altitudes may not necessarily include a physical wind turbine.
See Section II.B.2.c for requirements and for further examples of potential projects for  Group 3. 

	Q.59
	Can we simulate wind turbine behavior for our project vs. incorporating an actual wind turbine? Our project is an energy storage system for wind turbines (Group 3).

	A.59
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, projects that can demonstrate an improved and effective use of wind resources in California are eligible to participate in this grant funding opportunity. Group 3 projects may include applied research and development (R&D) solutions to reduce the cost of operating existing projects, promote the installation of modern wind projects, develop modern small turbines for distributed generation, and advance strategies and tools to support wind energy generation. Energy storage, if integrated to the wind system, may be considered from the perspective of adding value (e.g., add flexibility and reliability to the electric system) to the project. Such energy storage system may not be funded under this solicitation but may use match funds.  
See Section II.B.2.c for requirements and potential projects of Group 3.

	Q.60
	Do projects replacing old technology with newer, more efficient technology qualify? (Repowering)

	A.60
	Projects that demonstrate new technology as a more efficient and cost-effective replacement for older wind technology and that will contribute to the effective use of wind resources in California are eligible. 
See also Section II, part B.2.c for requirements and potential projects of Group 3.

	Q.61
	WHIs vertical axis wind turbines have been accepted into the underwriter Laboratories Advanced wind turbine test facility in Texas for IEC 6 1 400 type certification. The site is the only fully permitted facility we found that could work for the phase one of the project which needs to be done on flat land without upwind topographical features that make it difficult to measure wind turbulence. 1) The first question is if grant funding can be used for phase one of the project in Texas? Phase two would be in California. The first phase of the research for establishing a baseline would need to take place in Texas but then the following phases would take place in California. 
2) The model of turbine will start testing in September and so it won't have completed certification until later in the spring of 2017. That facility in Texas does not require certification to be installed and operated there but we're just wondering if there any restrictions or grants issues that would be affected by the fact that the turbine won’t be fully certified by the time the funding would become available? 
It'll be in the process of testing during that time but not completed until I'm not sure how long after that.

	A.61
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, as to project location, please see response A.1. As to certification, in general, IEC 61400 certification is not a requirement to be eligible to GFO 16-301. However, a commitment letter is required if the project involves testing/ demonstration/ deployment activities.
See Section II.B.2.c for requirements of Group 3.

	Q.62
	The proposed project will proceed more quickly if it can make use of the spring season’s high winds at the UL Advanced Wind Turbine Test Facility in Texas in 2017.  The grant funding won’t be available until Feb 2017 at the earliest.  There is a 4+ month lead time to make the Lidar unit needed to measure wake.  Baseline data from the sonic and cup anemometers should be taken a few months before turbines disturb the field.  WHI is considering setting up a new company that will buy the Lidar and anemometers, set them up, pre-test and calibrate them, and then sell them to WHI if the funds from the grant come in.  The new company would take the risk that they may not be able to sell the equipment if the grant is not awarded. Is there anything in this proposed structure that might create problems for the grant requirements, restriction and/or scoring process?

	A.62
	It is unclear to us what exactly this question is asking. It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. All proposals are evaluated based on the screening and scoring criteria. Please read carefully Sections IV.E and IV.F for further information. Furthermore, EPIC funds awarded under this solicitation may only be used for expenses incurred during the term of the agreement, after agreement execution (see A.16).   

	Q.63
	This R&D project will provide information needed to begin modeling how VAWTs of various sizes and configurations affect the wake and natural environment. It will use WHI’s 70kW VAWTs that are undergoing IEC certification at the UL test facility starting in Sept. This model VAWT won’t have completed certification until later in the spring of 2017. The UL facility does not require turbines to be certified to be installed and operated there. Are there any restrictions or grant scoring issues that would be affected by the fact that the turbine won’t be fully certified when the funding would become available?

	A.63
	See Response A.61 to question Q.61.

	Q.64
	The Lidar and associated sonic anemometers are expensive but are designed to be used in all the different phases of the research project and are expected to be in near continuous use over the four years of field studies in the long term research project. It is expected to take that many years to fully evaluate how different configurations of VAWTs affect HAWTs in different topographies and wind conditions. Should the grant show where the Lidar and other sensors will be used after the CEC funded portion of the R&D project is completed?

	A.64
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine how to develop their project proposal. In general, proposals need not specify where certain equipment will be used after the CEC-funded portion of the R&D project is completed. However, the Terms & Conditions applicable to your entity may contain provisions for equipment purchased using EPIC funds (see, e.g., EPIC Standard Grant T&C, Section 14). 

	Q.65
	WHI intends to make the research data available via the public domain after the first Phase is completed and the peer reviewed report is published.  The data will allow others to model and analyze how VAWTs affect wakes.  Would this affect the Intellectual Property provisions of the grant? Would this increase the grant related scoring?

	A.65
	It is unclear what “intellectual property provisions” this question refers to. The terms relating to intellectual property, in the published Terms & Conditions applicable to your entity, will be binding in any agreement that results from this solicitation. In addition, some agreements may make note of “Pre-Existing and Independently Funded Intellectual Property” in Attachment C-1. Recipients are responsible for determining the impact of any release of date on their planned market deployment of the product. Based on our understanding of this question, planned release of public data would not have an impact on score pursuant to the Scoring Criteria. 

	Q.66
	The grant funded research will help prove the value of WHI’s VAWT placement pattern patents. If the research shows that VAWTs can safely operate around HAWTs, WHI intends to license the patents to other VAWT Original Equipment Manufacturers and others for a royalty fee. Are we right to assume that this would fall under Section 22 and the State would receive 1.5% of the licensing income WHI generates from its placement pattern patents? This is acceptable to WHI.

	A.66
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions related to the legal consequences of an as-yet unawarded grant. However, in general and hypothetically, given only the facts, above, yes, Section 22 would apply. Please see Response A.13 and A.14. 

	Q.67
	WHI is going to make use of a sales-lease back arrangement in order to finance the turbines that will be used in the research project because it is unable to use the tax benefits associated with owning wind turbines and the 2 cent per kWh paid by the UL test facility is too low for any turbine owner to profitably own the turbine. The owning entity would then lease the turbines back to WHI for the research project. 1) Can any of the lease fee be covered by the grant? 2) Can the lease fee be a “matching” contribution made from WHI? 3) Are there any issues that would negatively impact the grant scoring by funding the turbines used in the research project in this manner?

	A.67
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions related to the specific consequences of an as-yet unawarded grant. However, as a general matter, a sales-lease back arrangement used to purchase equipment used for a proposed project could be an eligible expense.  Keep in mind that the scoring criteria evaluate how the applicant will maximize funds for the technical tasks in Part IV of the Scope of Work and minimize expenditure of funds for program administration and overhead. Please see Section IV.F for the scoring criteria.  Also, generally, a lease fee for equipment for research, paid within the term of the project agreement, can be used as match funds. See Section I.E of the application manual for further detail about match funds. And finally, scoring criteria does not consider method of equipment purchase other than, as stated, an evaluation of how funds are maximized; and cost-effectiveness (see Scoring Criterion 5, e.g.).

	Q.68
	The UL Advanced Wind Turbine Test Facility in Texas is the only fully permitted facility we have found with sufficient flat land and without upwind topographical that makes the Phase I part of the research project possible.  The UL facility did not undergo an environmental review before being permitted because it was deemed a research facility. 1) Should a CEQA level environmental review be done before the research project is implemented? 2) If so, what entity would review the proposed Negative Declaration on its impacts? 3) If a CEQA review is required, would the implementation of the DT Bird detection and dissuasion system resolve potential impacts that VAWTs could have on birds? 4) Since there is no evidence that WHI’s style VAWTs harm birds, would a “condition” to the project be needed that restricts the VAWTs from being operated in a manner that results in harm to any rare or endangered birds or bats?

	A.68
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions related to the legal consequences of an as-yet unawarded grant. A project what is totally undertaken in a state other than California may not be subject to CEQA. However, the applicant must comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, and standards, including NEPA. The Energy Commission may be required to conduct a review under NEPA as well. Also keep in mind that all pilot demonstration sites must be located in California IOU service territory or located in a facility that sells electricity to the IOU as documented by a PPA. All projects must benefit California IOU ratepayers. 

	Q.69
	One of the critical issues involving bringing VAWTs into wind farms in the Tehachapi area for Phase 2 research is whether they would harm endangered condors and raptors. Would a “take” permit be needed to conduct experiments with non-endangered vultures that inhabit the area around the UL test facility in Texas to determine whether these birds are harmed when attracted to carrion left under the operating VAWTs?  Vultures, being in the same family as condors and having many of the same behavioral instincts, would be a good test on how condors would react around VAWTs.  Does the take permit need to be secured before the grant application is made or before the grant funding is released if the grant is made?

	A.69
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions related to the legal consequences of an as-yet unawarded grant. In general, it is incumbent on applicants to determine and obtain all permits needed to conduct the research project, and to comply with all applicable laws, ordinance, regulations, and standards, including but not limited to the federal and California Endangered Species Acts. While permits need not necessarily be secured before application, permits must be identified at the project’s kickoff meeting and secured during the appropriate stage of the project. In addition, any expected environmental impact must be identified in the applicant’s CEQA Compliance Form, Attachment 8, for the Energy Commission’s consideration as it conducts its own review under CEQA. Keep in mind that time if of the essence with these projects, and if the project impacts are such that a lengthy review would be required, the Energy Commission reserves the right to cancel a proposed award. See Application Manual Section I.C, in particular Examples 3 and 4 under I.C.2. 

	Q.70
	Phase II of the research would occur in California wind farms with hills and ridgelines to determine who VAWT wakes might affect downwind HAWTs and birds and these topographies and biomes. The LADWP has offered to allow a Phase II test project to be set up on some of their land in the Jaw Bone area near Tehachapi.  Would this not be allowed? Would this not be allowed because LADWP is a public utility? Should WHI seek another location for a Phase II research site?

	A.70
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions related to the legal consequences of an as-yet unawarded grant. In general, it is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. Projects conducting pilot demonstration must be at sites located in a California electric IOU service territory or in a facility that sells its generated electricity directly to one of electric utilities (PG&E, SDG&E, or SCE) under a PPA and is demonstrating benefits to the utility ratepayers. In accordance with CPUC Decision 12-05-037, funds administered by the Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with publicly-owned utility activities.
A commitment letter is required if the project involves pilot demonstration activities. The applicant must include a letter signed by an authorized representative of the proposed test/ demonstration/ deployment site that commits to providing the site for the proposed activities.

	Q.71
	I am writing to inquire about the eligibility of a project that would support SDG&E IOU, but would involve a pilot in Baja Peninsula which involves testing a new wind farm repowering technology. Would this project be eligible for EPIC GFO-16-301 despite its physical location in Baja Peninsula? Of note, the lead contractor is a small business in California and the researchers are at Stanford University, so the funds would largely support California. Moreover, the power generated by Baja farms supports California ratepayers via transmission to San Diego.

	A.71
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, pilot demonstration must be located in a California electric IOU service territory (PG&E, SDG&E, or SCE) or located in a facility that sells electricity to the IOU as documented by a PPA. However, EPIC funds may not be spent outside of the United States or for out of country travel. Applicants may use match funds to cover these costs if there are no legal restrictions.
Benefits to California IOU ratepayers and the EPIC funds spent in California must be clearly established in the application.

	Q.72
	For Group 3: We aim to design and construct a field-scale, comprehensive, packaged system that will include an energy storage system, power generator, and power conditioner to improve wind turbine performance - specifically to store energy in order mitigate curtailment and utilize periods of over-generation, and then to provide continuous power during ramping/periods of intermittent power generation to improve reliability. Would this qualify as a project for this proposal?

	A.72
	It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding; the Energy Commission cannot at this time advise you as to whether or not your particular proposed project is eligible because all project details are not known by the Energy Commission. In general, the work described above appears to fit under Group 3. Please read answer A.59 to question Q.59.
See also Section II.B.2.c for requirements and potential projects of group 3.

	Q.73
	For Group 3: To demonstrate our energy storage system, would it be sufficient to simulate wind turbine input (simulate periods of ramping up/down, over-generation, and various other inputs to effectively mimic wind turbine behavior) vs. connecting to an actual wind turbine?

	A.73
	Research and development for improvement and advancement in wind technologies; strategies; and tools that will eliminate concerns associated with integrating a large amount of wind power into the grid are eligible projects. 
Please read also response A.59 to question Q.59.
See Section II.B.2.c for requirements and potential projects of group 3. 

	Q.74
	Clearly certain activities, such as adding vortex generators to an existing turbine blade or a high-efficiency cooling fan would not require a CEQA study, but where is this line drawn?  Our project would be to propose re-topping of existing towers with like-sized turbines...using the original towers and all of the existing electrical infrastructure...so no dirt would be moved nor would new air be disturbed and we'd be simply replacing a machine within the context of a field of legacy machines that have been operating in a permitted fashion for as long as 30 years.  Do you think you'd need more than a statement from CEQA and/or the County indicating that what we're planning would be viewed as a major service activity and thus would fall under the existing permit?

	A.74
	The Energy Commission cannot at this time answer questions regarding the legal impact of an as-yet unawarded project. It is not clear that the work described would not require CEQA review. While a full EIR, for example, may not be required, other review may be. The Energy Commission reviews all projects under CEQA, even if they may ultimately be determined to be, for example, categorically exempt. Hypothetically, if the work described above were proposed it could be helpful for the Energy Commission to see that a lead agency had already found the work to be categorically exempt as an existing facility. Applicants are responsible for determining the permits needed for a project and should consult with their own counsel if they do not understand CEQA or other requirements. Applicants are also responsible for completing Attachment 8 of the Application Manual and ensuring that projects are organized in a manner that minimizes the time required for the Energy Commission to comply with CEQA. See Application Manual section 1.C.  
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	Q.75
	Does the project have to be demonstrated on a potential deployment site, or can it also be in a lab-based environment?

	A.75
	Yes. This grant solicitation supports applied research and development where projects can be research and development activities at the laboratory or at a pilot-scale demonstration. 

	Q.76
	I have one more question about the facility location for the phase two, the pilot phase, which would take place in California. Would it be able to take place on a wind farm of a public utility? The research would not be conducted by the utilities.

	A.76
	Projects located in a facility owned by a public electric utility are not eligible. In accordance with CPUC Decision 12-05-037, funds administered by the Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with publicly-owned utility activities. 

	Q.77
	We want to organize the four environmental research areas (i.e. bird and bat impacts, downwind wake and turbulence, acoustics of larger projects, and visual impacts) all under one grant proposal. Third party documented information about all these issues is needed to meet CEQA for project permitting and secure wind farm owner permissions. All would measure how the different arrays of closely spaced VAWTs and their arrangements in a mini-wind farm affect sound, animals, views and wake. If we include all of them in one proposal and CEC deems one or more of the issues not worthy of funding, would the whole grant be rejected or only that section and its associated budget?

	A.77
	Each application will be evaluated based on the screening and scoring criteria as one proposal and will be recommended for funding or rejected accordingly. The Energy Commission reserves the right to reduce the scope and funding of a project as it deems necessary. See also Section II, part B.2 for requirements of each project group in this solicitation. 

	Q.78
	Do you decide whether or not projects located in California but outside of IOU territories are eligible to apply for a grant (including projects located in IID territories at Salton Sea and projects in Alturas, which is in PacifiCorp territory)?

	A.78
	Pilot demonstration sites must be located in California IOU service territory. Pilot demonstration projects located outside of the IOU territories must be in sites or facilities that sell its electricity to an IOU under a PPA. Projects conducting research and development at a laboratory and bench scale level only may be located anywhere else within California but must demonstrate ratepayer benefits. See also Response A.71 to Question Q.71.

	Q.79
	In the quoted section what does the 'benefit' refer to, jobs or air quality? "Projects with all test or demonstration sites located in disadvantaged communities and justification of how the project will benefit the disadvantaged community will receive additional points."

	A.79
	Benefits to California IOU ratepayers refer to annual electricity and thermal savings (kilowatt-hour and therms), peak load reduction and/or shifting; energy cost reductions, greenhouse gas emission reductions, air emission reductions and water use and/or cost reductions. These benefits criteria also apply to projects located in a disadvantaged community. 

	Q.80
	What information is required to be shared in the Technology/Knowledge transfer Plan? It is not clear if recipient knowledge which is proprietary will have to be shared. Please detail typical information to be included in the Technology/Knowledge transfer plan.

	A.80
	Please refer to Scope of Work Template (Attachment 6), Task [TBD-2] Technology/Knowledge Transfer Activities, third bullet point under the “The Recipient shall:” heading for information on what are included in the Technology/Knowledge transfer Plan. 
Applications submitted under this solicitation must not contain confidential information. As to deliverables in any agreement that may result from this solicitation, a bidder may request that data that is part of a product or deliverable in a proposed resultant agreement be kept confidential in Attachment C-1 of the proposed agreement. The burden is on the applicant to prove to the Energy Commission that a statutory exemption to the Public Records Act is applicable, and the Energy Commission’s legal office will make a determination as to whether or not the proposed data will be kept confidential. 

	Q.81
	1) Can you provide clarification on the requirements around connecting to a Publicly Owned Utility? 2) If a project site is physically located within a POU, but will pursue a Power Purchase Agreement with an Investor Owned Utility, is that acceptable? 3) What are the restrictions/requirements around this?

	A.81
	1) Projects inter-connecting to a Publicly Owned Utility are not eligible under this solicitation. See Response A.77 to Question Q.77.
2) Pilot demonstration sites must be located in California IOU service territory. However, pilot demonstration projects having a Power Purchase Agreement with an Investor Owned Utility (PG&E, SDG&E, or SCE) is acceptable. Other applied research prior to pilot demonstration has no location limitation but must demonstrate benefits to California IOU ratepayers. 
3) See Response A.77 to Question Q.77.

	Q.82
	Our project is a packaged system which contains an energy storage component. Would this project qualify for the funding?

	A.82
	Projects must satisfy the project group’s requirements. Energy storage, if integrated to the energy system, may be considered from the perspective of enhancing value (e.g. flexibility and reliability of the system) of the project. However, an energy storage component may not be the primary product of agreements funded under this solicitation, but technical tasks involving an energy storage system can be funded with match funds.    

	Q.83
	Is data mining and sensors proposal a fundable project?

	A.83
	Proposals involving data mining and sensors may be eligible as long the project meets the objectives and requirements of the specific project group. See Section II.B.2 for requirements and potential projects associated with each project group.
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	Q.84
	Could you confirm the maximum and minimum funding amounts under this solicitation?

	A.84
	The maximum award amount is $2M and the minimum award amount is $500K per project for all the project groups. The project cost can exceed $2 million but the grant award will not exceed $2 million. The applicant must demonstrate ability to fund the costs beyond the grant award.  
See Section I. E.1, page 7 of the Application manual, for the funding amount available for each project groups.

	Q.85
	Matching fund from Non-California company, but the application will benefit California, is that acceptable?

	A.85
	Yes. See also to Section I.E.1, page 7, for information regarding match funds. 

	Q.86
	Can EPIC funds received by IOU be used as matching fund?

	A.86
	No. Match funds do not include Energy commission awards and EPIC funds received from other sources. Please refer to Section I. E.1, page 7, for a list of match funds categories.

	Q.87
	In reference to “match funding section” three staff members have been working on this project plus one office manager for the last 6 years can we calculate the annual percentage of time for each staff member plus the office manager and use that amount as matching funds for their salary cost in the grant funds being requested.

	A.87
	No. Among the category of match funding are: “cash in hand” funds, subcontractor costs, and contractor/project partner in-kind labor costs. Remember that Match funds may be spent only during the agreement term, either before or concurrently with EPIC funds. Match funds also must be reported in invoices submitted to the Energy Commission. 
For more information, please see Section I.E.1, page 7.

	Q.88
	If the recipient owns a test facility with relevant equipment needed for testing, how shall the test facility be applied to match funding? Will all equipment, labor, and facility fees apply?

	A.88
	A prime recipient’s equipment, labor, and test facility fees may count as match funding. See also Section I.E.1 in page 7 of the application manual for information on what are included and not included as match funds. 

	Q.89
	1) If the source of funding provided by the IOU originated from the EPIC program, would that still be eligible to count as a matching fund for this project? 2) Does faculty and student time at universities count for matching fund (cost sharing)?

	A.89
	1) No. See answer A.85 of the question Q.85.
2) Yes. In-kind labor cost is considered as match fund.

	Q.90
	I haven't applied for a grant yet, but when you talk about matching funds that adds value to your request I guess is what you're saying. 1) Can you do that with in-kind matching funds? Let’s say you have some people that work with you that they're willing to donate their time or that they're willing to be paid for some of their time and then donate some matching time for the project. Would that count as in kind funding? 2) If you were going to build something that was going to be used in various applications of increasing the electric efficiency of either hydroelectric generation or something like that, if you were to have a building available to build this in, say a prototype, would that be considered as matching funds, you supplying the building, the facilities to do that work?

	A.90
	1) Yes, in-kind labor cost is considered as match fund. Match funds include: (1) “cash in hand” funds; (2) equipment; (3) materials; (4) information technology services; (5) travel; (6) subcontractor costs; (7) contractor/project partner in-kind labor costs; and (8) “advanced practice” costs. 
2) No, the cost or value of the project work site is not considered to be match funds. The cost or value of structures or other improvements affixed to the project work site permanently or for an indefinite period of time is also not acceptable as match fund.
Please refer to Section I. E.1, page 7, regarding to the complete list of categories that are considered as match funds.
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	Q.91
	To meet the underprivileged area requirement - can hosting info-sessions to raise awareness qualify?

	A.91
	No. Scoring criteria 9 provides only additional points to applications that meet both, stage one and two, minimum passing scores for testing and demonstration projects located in disadvantaged communities. 
As indicated in Section I.A of the application manual, disadvantaged communities are defined as areas representing census tracts scoring in the top 25 percent in CalEnviroScreen 2.0. Please use the following link to ensure your project is located within a geographic area defined as a disadvantaged community: 
http://oehha.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=dae2fb1e42674c12a04a2b302a080598 

	Q.92
	Can potential projects for aiding underprivileged areas through a product developed with this funding qualify toward this requirement?

	A.92
	No. See Response A.91 to question Q.91.

	Q.93
	1)To qualify for contributing to disadvantaged communities, may we create a product with the goal of aiding disadvantaged communities (i.e., attaching our packaged energy storage/power generating system to provide a cost-efficient method of powering water pumps for agricultural areas)? 2) May we collaborate with high school students/college students in disadvantaged communities to help design and build this project (i.e., through mentoring these students and promoting STEM learning)? 3) May we host an info session in a disadvantaged community to increase awareness of the benefits/issues relating to wind turbine and hydro-kinetic power generation, and the potential of energy storage? 4) May the laboratory for the pilot design, but not the actual pilot plant, be located in a disadvantaged community? 5) Does Cal Poly Pomona’s campus qualify as a disadvantaged community?

	A.93
	1) See response A.91 and A.92 to question Q.91 and Q.92, respectively.
2) See response A.91 and A.92 to question Q.91 and Q.92, respectively.
3) See response A.91 and A.92 to question Q.91 and Q.92, respectively.
4) To obtain the additional scoring points for disadvantaged communities (see Scoring Criteria 9, Section IV.F. of the application manual), the test or demonstration site must be in a disadvantaged community and must justify how the project will benefit the disadvantaged community. 
5) To confirm if a location is qualified as a disadvantaged community, please go to http://oehha.maps.arcgis.com/apps/Viewer/index.html?appid=dae2fb1e42674c12a04a2b302a080598.
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	Q.94
	Does the percentage of funds spent in California count toward the TOTAL budget (including the matched funds), or just the part that the EPIC grant would fund?  Would gathering of data in California - for the benefit of California ratepayer - that is "crunched" in another state count as funds spent in California?

	A.94
	The percentage of funds spent in California counts toward the total EPIC funds requested in the proposal.
Please, refer to Section IV, part F, Scoring Criteria table, for “Impact and Benefit for California IOU Ratepayers” and “EPIC Funds Spent in California” Criteria. 
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